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iServeU Technology Private Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

IserveU Technology Private Limited
U729000R2016PTC025851

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 05" Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

1. Performance of the Company

Financial Results

(Amount in X lakhs)

Particulars For the Year Ended For year ended
31st March 21 31st March 2020
Total Income 4,208.42 2,231.28
Total Expenditure 4,155.24 2,202.25
Profit before Tax 53.18 29.03
Less: Provision for Tax
Current Tax 37.83 7.55
Deferred Tax (asset)/ liability (24.00) 0.95
Net Profit after Tax 39.35 20.53
EPS (Basic) 186.77 102.65
EPS (Diluted) 186.77 102.65

Performance

During the year, your company recorded a Total Income of Rs. 42,08,42,000/- from Rs. 22,31,28,000/- in
previous year, a rise of 89.00% as compared to the previous year. The Profit before Tax stood at Rs.
53,18,000/- from Rs. 29,03,000/- in previous year, an increase of 83.20% as compared to the previous
year. Profit after Tax increased to Rs. 39,35,000/- from Rs. 20,53,000/- in previous year, an increase of
91.66% as compared to the previous year.

2. Covid-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic has emerged as a global challenge, creating disruption across the world forcing
governments to enforce lock-downs of all economic activity. The physical and emotional wellbeing of
employees continues to be our top priority along with minimizing disruption of services for all our
customers. The Company effectively responded to this pandemic situation and ensured that the business
was not affected and operations of the Company were carried out while handling the crisis situation.
Several initiatives were rolled out to make teams and managers effective while working from different
locations.

The Company is actively seeking new opportunities and is continuously striving to navigate all the
challenges that it would face.

3. State of Companies Affairs

The Company is focused on its vision and committed to fulfilling its mission through ensuring consistent
delivery of quality products, unsurpassed service and premium value to its esteemed customers. It also
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aims to work diligently as a team with high standards of integrity, as well as emerge as a winner in the
marketplace in all aspects of it business. Further details are mentioned in the Financials of the Company.

4. Holding, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

Pursuant to the definitive agreements entered into by the Company with Niyogin Fintech Limited, it has
become a subsidiary of Niyogin Fintech Limited w.e.f. December 18, 2020 and Niyogin Fintech Limited
and the shareholders of the Company Niyogin Fintech Limited hold 51.00% equity share capital and
voting rights in the Company.

5. Changes in the capital structure

During the year 2020-21, the Company increased its paid-up share capital by way of private placement
of 3,209 (Three Thousand Two Hundred Nine only) equity shares having face value of Rs.10/- each to
Niyogin Fintech Limited and became subsidiary of Niyogin Fintech Limited w.e.f. December 18, 2020.

6. Dividend
Your Director’s do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

7. Meetings

During the year under review, Ten (10) Board Meetings convened and held on April 15, 2020, June 30,
2020, July 21, 2020, August 10, 2020, August 31, 2020, October 05, 2020, October 12, 2020, December
18, 2020, February 08, 2021 and February 26, 2021.

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

8. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2021, the Company’s Board consists of the following Directors:
Amit Tyagi - Director

Debiprasad Sarangi - Director

Amit Vijay Rajpal — Additional Director

Rumit Dugar — Additional Director

Tashwinder Harjap Singh — Additional Director

VVVYVYYYV

During the year 2020-21, Mr. Debashis Mohapatra ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect
from January 04, 2021 and Mr. Amit Vijay Rajpal, Mr. Rumit Dugar and Mr. Tashwinder Harjap Singh
were appointed as Additional Directors of the Company with effect from January 13, 2021.

9. Annual Return

A copy of the annual return as provided under section 92(3) of the Act, in the prescribed form, which will
be filed with the Registrar of Companies/MCA, is placed on Company’s website www.iserveu.in.

10. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the year under review, the Company has not provided any guarantees covered under section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013.
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11. Particulars of Contract and Arrangements made with Related Parties

With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, all contracts and arrangements with
related parties under Section 188(1) of the Act, entered by the Company during the financial year, were
in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not
entered into any contract or arrangement with related parties which could be considered as ‘material’ (i.e.
transactions which were required to be placed before the members of the Company) according to the
policy of the Company on materiality of Related Party Transactions. None of the Directors had any
pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company. Since all the Related Party Transactions
entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and were on an arm’s length basis,
hence Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company.

12. Public Deposits
In terms of the provisions of Sections 73 of the Act read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the Company

had no opening or closing balances and also has not accepted any deposits during the year under review
and as such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on March 31, 2021.

13. Transferred to any Reserves

During the period under review it is not proposed to carry any amount to any reserves. Hence, disclosure
under Section 134(3)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

14. Maintenance of Cost Records

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records as specified by the Central Government under
Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

15. Human Resource Management

The Company recognizes human resource to be the most valuable asset of the Company. People
development continues to be a key focus area at iServeU. The Company continues to pay a focused
attention on the development of human relations within the organization. The Company believes in
building a culture of innovation and creativity where our employees are inspired to achieve excellence in
their area of functioning.

16. Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under for prevention and redressal of complaints
of sexual harassment at work place. The Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment
during the year under review.

17. Risk Management Policy

The Company has a robust Risk Management Framework to identify, evaluate business risks and
opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business
objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. Risk mitigation continues to be a key area
of concern for the Company, which has regularly invested in insuring itself against unforeseen risks. The
Company’s insurable assets like server, computer equipment, office equipment, furniture & fixtures etc.
have been adequately insured against major risks.
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18. Corporate Social Responsibility

In terms of the Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not fulfilling the criteria of having
average net profit for immediate three preceding financials years. Accordingly, the Company is not
required to spend amount in the CSR activities during the financial year.

complaints.

19. Audit Committee

Presently, the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

20. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Being in service sector, the particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption as
required to be disclosed under the Act are not applicable to the Company. The Company has not earned
any amount in terms of foreign Exchange.

21. Significant & material orders passed by the requlators or courts
There are no material litigations outstanding as on March 31, 2021.

22. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls in Relation to Financial Statements

The Company has documented its internal financial controls considering the essential components of
various critical processes, both physical and operational. This includes its design, implementation and
maintenance along with periodic internal review of operational effectiveness and sustenance, and
whether these are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and complexity of its
operations. This ensures orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention of errors, accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, the timely preparation of reliable financial information and prevention and detection
of frauds and errors. Internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were adequate
and operating effectively.

23. Other disclosure under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the report, there have been no material changes and commitments,
which can affect the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date
of report.

The Board of Directors informs the member that during the financial year there has been no material
changes, except as disclosed elsewhere in the report:

e In the nature of Company’s business.

e Generally in the classes of business in which the Company has interest.

24, Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:
a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed

along with %oper explanation relating to material departures; ) )
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b. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the Company for that period;

c. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

25. Remuneration Policy

None of the employees including managerial personnel draws in excess of the limits prescribed under
section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Remuneration) Rules, 2014 which needs to be disclosed in
the Director’s Report.

26. Statutory Auditors

M/s. Manoj Choudhury & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No 327294E, had been
appointed as the Statutory Auditors for a period of five (5) years at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held in FY2018-19 till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
in FY2023-24. In terms of the first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of
the Auditors needs to be placed for ratification at every subsequent Annual General Meeting since their
first appointment. However, pursuant to the notification dated 07th May, 2018 of the Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2017, the said appointment is not required to be ratified every year so long as the
Auditors are eligible & qualified to be appointed. In this regard, the Company has received a
communication from the Statutory Auditors to the effect that their appointment is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence their appointment is not required to be
ratified

27. Auditor’s Report

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks in their
report are self-explanatory and does not require any call for any further comments.

28. Corporate Governance

Your Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance while interacting with all the
stakeholders. The increasing diversity of the investing community and the integrated nature of global
capital markets render corporate governance a vital issue for investors. The Company believes that timely
disclosures, transparent accounting policies and a strong independent Board go a long way in maintaining
good corporate governance, preserving shareholders trust and maximizing long term corporate value. In
pursuit of corporate goals, the Company accords high importance to transparency, accountability and
integrity in its dealings.

29. Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company is in compliance with all applicable Secretarial Standards as notified from time to time.
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30. Appreciation:

Your directors take this opportunity to express their grateful appreciation for the continued support and
cooperation received from our esteemed customers, vendors, dealers, Investors, business associates and
bankers during the year. The directors are thankful to the company’s shareholders, Central and State
Government authorities, Regulatory Authorities for their consistent support to the company. Your
company has been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, Creativity,
Integrity and continuous improvement in all functions and areas as well as efficient utilization of the
company’s recourses for sustainable & Profitable Growth.

Inspired by this Vision, driven by values and powered by internal vitality, your directors and employees
look forward to the future with confidence and stand committed to creating an even brighter future for all
stake holders.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IserveU Technology Private Limited

DQLOEPRG&G-B‘ San °"’t7;

r. Amit Tyagi Mr. Debiprasad Sarangi
Director Director
DIN:08317195 DIN: 07601542

Date: July 28, 2021
Place: Bhubaneshwar
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MANOJ CHOUDHURY & ASSOCIATES |
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors IserveU Technology Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Results

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IserveU Technology Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021,
and profit/loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

a) To the extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic will continue to impact the Company’s
_— financial results will depend on ongoing and future uncertain development.

b) Effective from 1* April 2020, the Company has adopted the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) notified by the Ministry of Companies Affairs with transition date of 1** April 2019.

Followings are the major impact areas for the company upon such transition:

i) Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial Liahilities
i) Accounting for loan fees and costs
iii) Accounting for actuarial gain / loss on postemployment benefit.

We identified transition date accounting as a key audit matter because of significant degree of
Management judgment and application on the areas noted above.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

HEAD OFFICE : PLOT NO-GA117, GAYATRI VIHAR, BEHIND TCS OFFICE, PATIA, BHUBANESWAR - 751024
BMOB : +91 7894466789 M caniranjanmohapatra@gmail. com

BRANCH OFFICE : NEAR ICICI BANK, NEW COLONY, RAYAGADA, ODISHA, PIN - 756001
[*MOB : +9861679566, OFFICE - 06856-222332 < sceagold@amall com



Other Information

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Information

The Company’s Board of Directars is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but te do
50.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibility for Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
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one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and tc communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

<)

d)

<€)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books:;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement cf Cash Flow dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directers as on 315t March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;




) We have sought and obtained all information with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ifi.

iv.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company te its
directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the
rules thereunder.

For Manoj Choudhury & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 0327294E

njan Mchapatra
Partner

Membership No. 099882
UDIN: 21099882AAAAEC4429

Place® Bhubaneswar
Date; 19% May 2021



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Iservel Technology Private Limited

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of lservel
Technology Private Limited (the ‘Company’) on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.

b. The Company’s fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. The Company does not have any immovable property held in its name. Accordingly,
the provision of clause 3 (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a. As explained to us, the inventories of Finished Goods were physically verified at
regular intervals by the Management.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to book records.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (iii} of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees under section 185 and 186
of the Act. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public to which the directives issued by Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any other relevant provisions of
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

the Act and the rules framed there under apply. Accordingly, clause 3 (iv) of the Order
is not applicable toc the Company

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 {vi) of the Order is not applicable.

a. According to the information and explanaticns given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income
tax, goods anc service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a delay in few cases. As explained to us, the Company did not
have any dues on account of employee’s state insurance, duty of customs, duty of
excise, sales tax, and value added tax.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more thar,
six months from the date they became payable.

c. There are no dues of income tax and goods and service tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The
Company does not have any loans. or borrowings from financial institutions or
government and has not issued any debentures.

The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further pubiic
offer (including debt instruments), accordingly, clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and
according to the explanation and information given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the vear.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on cur exarination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the reauisite approvals rnandat d by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanauom given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordinaly, ine prcwsuon of clause 3 (xi1) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information anc explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in




compliance with secticn 177 and 188 of the Act, where anplicable and the details have
been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and expianations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has made private placement
of shares during the year under review.

In respect of above issue, we further report that:

(a) the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have
been complied with; and

(b) the amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and it has applied for certificate of registration.

For Manoj Choudhury & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No_0327294E

njan Mohapatra

Partner
Membership No. 099882
UDIN: 271099882AAAAEC4429

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: 17"May 2021



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of IserveU
Technology Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial Statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we Have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements of IservelU Technology Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Company’) , as of that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial contrdls with
reference to the financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components
of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Contrels
g

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements based on the
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intarnal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements based cn our audit. We conducted cur audit in accordance witi the Cuidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controts with reference to the financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requireaments and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference fo the financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financizl controls with reference to the financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed iis :




procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Manoj Choudhury & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 0327294t

Nirapnjén Mohapatra

Partner
Membership No. 099882
UDIN: 21099882AAAAEC4429

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: 1™ May 2021



|Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021

Iserveu Technology Private Limited -

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Kl Notes | A*™ 3;0’; 1‘“"“‘ AS At31stMarch 2020  As At Ist April 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property,Plant and Equipment Note 12 46.80 26.30 10.36
Right of use Asset Note 4 49.24 46.08 28.01
Intangible assets Note 12 10.28 £.86 8.76
Intangible assets under development
Financial Assets
i. Investments
Other non- current assets Note 8 5.65 5.53 1.13
Total non-current assets 111.97 86.76 48.26
Current assets
Inventories Note 5 91.82 0.55 38.47
Financial assets
i. Investments
ii. Trade receivables Note 6 50.33 25.56 17.76
i1, Cash and cash equivalents Note 7 2,169.42 567.54 22922
v. Loans Note 9 25.40 14.50 x
Other current assets “&‘:‘T ) g 104854 870.69 403.79
Total current assets _3,385.50 1,478.85 689.25
. Total assets 3.497.47 1,565.61 737.51
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 2\:‘{’: 2.32 2.00 2.00
Other equity ol 1,720.06 76.43 55.90
21(b) i
Total equity 1,722.38 78.43 57.90
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
. Current liabilities
! Financial liabilities
| i.Borrowings Note 22 7.00 540.59 157.70
1. Trade Payables Note 23 82.12 13.40 0.60
!. 111.Other financial liabilities Note 23 1.524.49 724.33 492 .04
| Other current liability Note 24 161.49 208.87 29.27
Total current liabilities 1,775.09 1,487.18 679.61
={ otal liabilities 1,775.09 1,487.18 679.61
. T'otal equity and liabilities 3,497.47 1,565.61 737.51
See also Accompanying Notes to Accounts 1 to 39
In terms of our report of even date ISERVEY TE CHROUDB BT oL Brclors of
i * ISERVEU TECHN
For Manoj Choudhury & Ass Debipn Saxr
ants 0.50“ Mr. Debiprasad Sarang|RECTOR Mr. Amit T
Director Director IREC
DIN : 07601542 DIN : 08317195

| @Brtner b5

! NN,
i Membership No. : (099882 “~. " T L=
e

I UDIN - 21099882AAAAEC4429

Mr. Tashwinder Harjap Singh

Director
DIN : 06572282

Mr. Rumit Dugar
Director
DIN : 06869856




Iserveu Technology Private Limited
Standalone statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2021
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
7 ) For the Year For year ended 31st
FArHienty NOteS | Ended March 21 March 2020
| Revenue from operations Note 13 4,206.80 2,216.11
" Other income Note 14 1.62 15.16
. Total income 4,208.42 2,231.28
5
-
. Expenses
| Cost of Services Note 15 3,260.44 1,632.58
Change in Inventories of Stock In Trade Note 16 (91.26) 3791
" Employee benefit expense Note 17 455.20 232.20
Finance cost Note 18 117.23 185.44
Depreciation expense Note 19 28.84 14.09
Other expenses Note 20 384.80 100.03
- Total expenses 4,155.24 2,202.25
Profit before tax 53.18 29.03
! Income tax cxXpense
" - Current tax 37.83 7.55
- Deferred tax Liability (Assets) (24.00) 0.95
'otal tax expense 13.83 B.49
_rofit for the year 39.35 20.53
‘ther comprehensive income
tems that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
(i) Reameasurements of defined benefit plans =
Tax relating to above
_Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
_ 'otal comprehensive income for the year 39.35 20.53
_“arnings per equity share (Face value Rs 10 per share) T 186.77 2 102.66
See also Accompanying Notes to Accounts 11039
For and on behalf of the BoiS8RVELr \ PV'JD.
ISERVEU TEC{HNOLO Y PVT.LTD. :
For Manoj Choudhury & Associates Debipn San "”b? '/DI e
“‘hartered Accountants Mr. DebipragagieSaremei Mr. Amit Tyagi RT:
Director Director
BHUBANESWAR DIN : 07601542 DIN : 08317195

FRN 321294E

artner
Membership No. : 099882

UDIN : 21099882AAAAEC4429
Zhubaneswar, 21st May, 2021

Mr. Tashwinder Harjap Singh Mr. Rumit Dugar

Director
DIN : 06572282

Director
DIN : 06869856




Iserveu Technology Private Limited
Cash flow statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
| CIN : U729000R2016PTCO25851
1 {Amount in T lakhs)

Cash flow from onq activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations 53.18 29.03

Profit before tax from discontinuing operations - -

Profit before tax 53.18] 29.03|
i Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows -

Deprecation/ amortization on continuing operations 2884 14.09
Depreciation/ amortization on discontinuing operations . -
Loss/ (profit) on sale of fixed assets 0 J
Provision for diminution In value of investments in subsidiary company - E
Decrease | (Increase) in profit due to ind As Adjustments -20.52 -13.86

nterest expense 57.84 117.25]
‘aterest (incoma) 074 -1.49
\Pnor period expenses
|Oner-|tirlg profit before working capital changes 118.69 145.02
{Movements in working capital
--1crease|’ (decrease) in trade payables 68.72 12.80
ncrease | (decrease) in other current liabilities 504,54 37963

Increase | (decrease) in Provisions 246.54 14.44

Decrease | (increase) in trade receivables 868 -T.80

Necrease | ‘increase) in inventories j 9126 ar.e

Necrease | increase) in loans and advances 4822 -135.70

Jecrease | increase) in other cument assets -73.29 -253. 1BJ

“ash generated from /(used in) cperations 716.85 193.10f

Uirec! laxes (net of refunds) -97 89 -104.79

‘et cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) £18.96 88.31

|Cash flows from investing activities

|Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advances -32.15 -22.05

sale of Fixed Asset . E
Jecrease in Security Deposit

Rent Income

westments - -

“aterest received (.36 0.75

‘et cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) -31.79] -21.30
~=4h flows from finaneing activities
“roeeens from issuance of equity share capital 1,604.59
roceids ‘rom long-lerm borrowings -
Qenayment of long-term bormowings - i
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 304 071
‘=erease in Bank Loan =
<zoayment of short-term borrowings -538.57 75
:tterest paid -51.31 -115.18
*let cach flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) 1,014.72 271.30
12t increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 1,601.88 338.32
="t of 2y shange differences on cash & cash equivalents held in foreign curmrency
{ ¢ 1sh equivalents al the beginning of the year 567.54 20420
3l 1 :ash equivalents at the end of the year 2,169.42 567.541
Lwinpunents of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in nana 0.12 0.12
A uqueu draits on hand :
o ey e
@ eq [note 12) 2,168.42 567.54
0.00 .00
= pes zur rgport of even date Cﬁos . ISERVEU TECHNOLOGY ATD.
F S Donef o the Boart of Directors ME/
i Mr. Debiprasad Sara Mr. Amit Tyagi
Discor - DIRECTOR Direclor \ [oECTOR
DIN - 07801542 DIN : 08317195
Mr. Tashwinder Harjap Singh Mr. Rumit Dugar
Director Director
DIN : 06572282 DiN ; 0BBE9I8SE

L s 21t BQU&ZAMAECMZ
i |.t:‘:ﬂ3f. 21st Mayu 2021 8




Iserveu Technology Private Limited
Accompanying notes to the finanical statements for the period ended March 31, 2021 Financial Year 2020-21

CIN : U729000R2016PTC025851
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Note 12: Property,Plants & Equipments
Cross Block Accumulated Depraciation Mat Block
Particulars As ai Additions Deductions As at Up fo "l'!!ﬂle” fortbem Deductions Upto As at As at
Apeit 1, 2020 {during the Yeat | during the year | Mar 31, 2021 | march 31,2020 oy dufing the year | er 31, 2021 | Mar 37,2021 | March 31, 2020
T'ingiblehl'ssets s = ST L B TNt 3 : St S e s T s Sty S el o e
Office Equipments 411 3.27 - 7.38 1.1 1.1 - 2.22 5.16 3.00
Network Equipments 10.70 - 10.70 0.43 0.78 1.2 849 10.27
Computer Equipments 16.48 26.23 - 42.71 6.10 6.83 - 12.94 2977 10.38
__ Furnitures & Fixtures 29y - -1 %% o[ o N S 237)  2.65]
titangible Asset
Web Platform 985  089] - 084)  219] 098 —p i1} 7] _ 787
Software Development 1.20 1.66 - 286 0.01 .25 - 0.26 2.60 1.19
Total 4529 32.15 - 77.44 10.13 10.24 - 20.37 57.07 35.16




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Note 21 - Equity Share capital and ather equity
21(a) Equity share capital
(i) Issucd aad paid Up cquity share capital

Accompanying notes to the finanical statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Amountin ¥ lakhs)

Tarticulars

Number ol shares

Eaquity sharve capital

| As At 3]st March 2021 (23,200 No. of equity shares of Rs, 10 cach, fully pmd) 23209 232
| Asat 315t March 2020 (20,000 No. of ecwiy shares of Rs. 10 each. fully paid) - 20,000 2.00
Asal lsi a\lm: Q0 ?n 0000 Ny ol e ity shares ol R 10 paeh l'n”y Iwu|} 20 600 200

(i) Movements in equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares Equity share capital
Equity Share Capital As at 15t Apnil 2020 20.000 200
As At 01st December 2020 - Issue of new 3209 shares with Face value Rs. 10/- per share and [ssue Price N
] Spe 3,209 032
Rs 51,002.81775= per shase.

Equity Share Capiial As at 31st March 2021 23209 232
As at 31st March 2020 (20,000 No. of equity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid) 200,000 (i 200
As at st April 2019 (20,0000 No. of equity shares of Ks. 10 each, fully paid) 20,000.00 200

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of Equiry shares having a par value of 10/-

number of equity shares held by the shareholders

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vore per share. In the event of |
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assels of the company, sfier distribulion of all preferential amounts. The dist

tquidation of the Company, the
ribution will be in proportion (o the

(iii) Share of the company held by holding company
Particulars_ As at 31st March, 2021 As At 31st March 2020 As At Ist April 2019
11837 no. of Equity shares ol 10 each, fully paid-up held by Niyogin
Fintech Lumired .18 - -
Total 118 - -
(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31st March, 2021 As At 31st March 2020 As At 1st April 2019

Shricniaty No. of Shares | % of Holding | No. of Shares | % of Holding b::r:: % of Holding
Debashis Mohapatra 1280 5.52% 10,000 S0.00%| 10,000 05
Debi Prasad Sarang 6252 26 4% 10,000 50.00%( 10,000 05
At Tyag 1280 5.52% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Sanjib Panda 1280 5.52% - 0.00% - 0,002,
Umakanta Sahoo 1280 5.52% - 0.00% - (.00%
Niyogin Fintech Limited 11837 51.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Total 23,209 1O0.00%: 20,000 100.00%] 20,000 100.00%

Note: There are no shares issued for consideration Wilier than cash




21(b) Other Equity

(i) Securities premium reserve account

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As At 31st March 2020 As Ar Ist April 2019
Securities premium reserve 1.604.27 - -
Grant Received 5.00 5.00 5.00
Retaned Earnings 110.78 7143 5090
Equity component of compulsory convertible preference shares

[ lotal other equity 1,720.06 76.43 55.90

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021

As At 31st March 2020

As At Ist April 2019

Opening balance
Addition during the vear on issue of shares-

1,604 27

Closing balance

1.604.27

i) Grund Received

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As At 31st March 2020 As At Ist April 2019
Opening balance 500 500 500
Addition during the year
Reduction during the year on issue of shares
Closing balance 5.00 5.00 5.00

(iti) Retained Earnings

Parficulars

As at 3ist March, 2021

As At dist March 2020

As At Ist April 2019

Opening balance
Net Profit for the periad

carmings

Interim dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)
Items of other comprehensive income recogmised directly in retained

-R 1ents of defined benefit obliganon. net of tax

T1 43
39.35

50 9()
2053

S0 9¢)

Closing balance

110,78 |

71.43

50.90




Nuie 4 - Right of Use Assei

Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Accompanying notes to the finanical statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

{Amount in T lakhs)

As Al S3Tsi Mareh 2020

As AL Ist April 2019

Particuinrs As ail 3isi March, 20621
Right of use 49.24 46.08 2801
tatal 49.24 46,05 28014

Note S - Inventories

As At 3ist March 2020

As At Ist April 2019

Particulars As at 3ist March, 2021
Stock in Trade 91.82 0.55 3847
Total 91.82 0.55 3847

Note 6 - Trade Receivahles

Particulars

As at 318t March, 2021

As At 31st March 2020

As At Ist April 2019

‘Trade receivables 50.33 25.56 1776
Less: Prowvision for doubtful debts
Total 50.33 25.56 17.76

Note 7 - Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31st March, 2021

As AL 318t March 2020

As At Ist April 2019

Particulars
Cash on hand 0.12 0.12 0.02
Balances with banks

= In Current accounts 2.169.31 56743 229.2]
Total 2,169.42 567.54 229.22

Note 8 - Other non- current assets

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard 1o cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods

As At 31st March 2020

As At Ist April 2019

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021
Security deposits hs 5.53 113
Total 565 553 113




Note 9 - Loans

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As At 31st March 2020 As At 1st April 2019
Current

Loan to Employees 25.40 14.50 -
Other loans

Total 25.40 14.50 -

Note 10 - Other current assets

As At 31st Mareh 2020

Particnlars As at 315t March, 2021 As At Ist April 2019
Prepaid Fxpenses 6.24 1.35 -
Advance against salary 045 0.04 =
Advanece Tax | Net of Prvisions 157 30 1313 IS 88
Total 164.00 114.51 15.88

Note 11 - Other financial assets

Other wmount in TDS is covered in statutory dues

As At 31st March 2020

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As At Ist April 2019
Advance (o parties 159.70 120.23 1.62
Advance Recoverable In cash or kind 701 94 H33 39 iRA R
Other financial assels - 2.56 -
Deterred Tax Assets 22.89
Total 884.54 756.18 387.91

\
\




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Accompanying notes to the finanical statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 21 -Borrowings

{Amountin ¥ lakhs)

Particulars As 2t 3ist March, 2031 As At 3=t March 2020] As At ist April 2018
Unsecured 1.oans

Loan from Directors 7.00 9.85 9.85
Loan from Bank - 13.99 21.40
Loan from Others (1L.00 516.75 126.44
Secured Loans

Loan from KIIT -
Total 7.00 540.59 157.70
Note 23 - Other linbilities

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As At 31st March 2020] As At 1st April 2019
arenl

Statutory Dues 48.83 208.87 29.27
Other Payables 112.66

Total 161.49 208.87 29.27

Note 24 - Other financial liabilities

As At 31st March 2020

As At 1st April 2019

Particulars As at 3ist March, 202)

Current

(Creditors for expenses 82.12 13.40 0.60
Liabilities Towards Channel Partners* 1.123.55 570.72 371.59
Provision for Expenses 350.09 103.55 89.11
Advance from customer - 0.90 -
Lease Liability 50.85 45.07 30.04
Deferred Tax hability - .12 0.17
Deferred Income on Government Grant 0.00 2.97 1.13
Total 1,606.61 737.72 492.64

DREW




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Accompanying notes to the finanical statements for the Period ended March 31, 2021

Note 13 - Revenue from operations Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Puiticalivg For the Year Ended |  For year ended
Mirch 21 31st March 2020
Device Sales 272,73 228 94
Commission Income 373842 1,886.25
One time Set Up Fees 195 66 100.93
Total 4,206.80 2,216.11

Note 14 - Other income

For the Year Ended For year ended

Chstieatucs March 21 31st March 2020
Discount Received 0.06 0.02
Interest on Loan / Advance - 0.75
Marketing Fees 0.52 1.03
Roundoff {0.00) 0.00
Technology Salution - 8.70
Modification Gain on Leas:s - 3.77
Interest income on security deposit 030 0.15
Interest on Income Tax Rafunt 0.36 -
Deferred Income 0.39 074

Total 1.62 15.16

Note 15 - Cost of Services

For the Year Ended For year ended

S March 21 31st March 2020
Cost of Services & Purchases for Stock 3.260.44 1,632 58
Total 3,260.44 1.632.58

Note 16 - Change in lnventories of Stock In Trade

For the Year Ended |  For year ended

Frirtitlart March 21 31st March 2020
Opening stock 055 3847

Less - Closing Stock 91.82 0.55
Total (91.26) 37.91

Note 17 - Employee benefit expenses

For the Year Ended |  For year ended

Particulars March 21 31st March 2020
Salaries, wages, bonus etc 443 69 226,62
EPF (Employer Contr 5.26 266
Staff welfare expenses 2.25 2.92
Gratuity Expense 4.00 -
Total 455.20 232.20

‘h\
(@’QE /"/'
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Note 18 - Finance cost

Partioilirs For the Year Ended For year ended
March 21 31st March 2020
Interest on loan 5370 3275
Interest expenses on lease Lability 424 308
Bank Charges 5929 6924
Bill discounting expensas - 80.37
Total 117.23 18544
Note 19 - Depreciation exnenses
- i For the Year Ended For year ended
BRSNS March 21 318t March 2020
Amortization of RO 18.60 RO8
Depreciation 10.24 601
Total 28.84 14.09
Note 20 - Other Expenses
Particulars For the Year Ended For year ended
March 21 31st March 2020
Advertisement Charges 15.29 194
Interest on GST 10.15 244
Office Repair & Maintenance 15.95 17.07
Communication expenses 17.67 6.40
Certification 214 542
Rent expenses 8.70 492
IT expenses 66.77 692
Travelling Expensas 177 715
Auditors Remuneration EXI]| 075
Legal & professional fees 209.02 Q18
Rates & Tax 5 0.34
Brokerage charges 335 -
Servicing charges 6.78 2594
Miscelianeous Expensas 14.20 11.56
Total 384.80 100.03




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in Z lakhs)

1.

21

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Iservel Technelogy Private Limited (the Company') has been issued 2 Cenificate of Incorporation dated 27 Sep 2016. It is a
FinTech Startup, innovating thz next-gen payment solutions by creatine a conneclivity between remotely located un-
banked/under-banked masses with basic financial services through technelegy driven agent network.

iServeU is a DIPP cerifiec Fin Tech Company registered under The Start-up India program of Government of India, supported
by NSTDEB. pledging towards making India a financial inclusive society. It has spent 5 years and more and has successfully run
several technology sclutions in parnership with Banks NBFCs, Financial Institution Players and Corporate Business
Correspondents.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIC OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The standalone financal staterments of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(the 'Ind AS') prescribed urder section 133 of the Comparies Act, 2013 (the 'Act).

For all periods up to and including the year end2d 31 March 2020 the Company had prepared its standalone financial
statements in accordance with accounting slandards notifiad under section 123 of the Act, read togsther with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts; Rules, 2’014 (Indian GAAP or previsus GAAP). These standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 are the Compzny's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

Basis of measurement
The financial staternents have heen prepared on historical cost basis except the following :

- certain financial assets and liabilities {including darivative instruments) are measured at fair value:
- assets held for sale- measurzd at fair value less cost to sell

- defined benefit olans- plan assets measured at fzir value: and

- share based payments

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current fnoncurrent classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intzrded to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelva months after the reporting date, or

- Cash or cash equivalent uness restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting perioc

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

It is expected tc be settied in rcrmal operating cycle
- ltis due to ba settled within tweive months after the reporting period, or
- There is no uncancitional rynt lo defer the settlernent of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are ciassified as non —current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilties are class fied as nor-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of procucts and services offered by the Company, operating cycle determined is 12 months for the
purpose of current and nor-current classification of aszets znd liabilities

The operating cycle 1s te lims between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Cc

Functional and prasentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the 'functional currency'). The values are rounded to the nearest rupees, except

Use of estimates, judoements and assumptions

The preparation of the standalore financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions considerad in tha reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported
income and expenses during the year. Actual results may differ from the estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Ravisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

The key assumptions concaming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing 2 matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are descrived below. The Company based its assumpticns and estimates on parameters available when the standalone
financial statements ware preparad. Existing circumstances anc assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Following are the areas that involved a higher degres of estimates and judgement or complexity in determining the carrying
amount of some assets and liabilitizs,

a) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the prnzipal (er most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. an exit price) regerdless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.
When the fair values of finznzial assets and financial liabilites recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models.

b

Effective interest rate ('EIR" method

The Company's EIR methodology recognises interest expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life cf loans taken and recognises the effect of potentially different
interest rates at varicus stages and other characleristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest
and charges).

This estimatior, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well as expecled changes to interest rates and other fee expense that are integral parts of the instrument.
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24 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

D Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions (Continuea)

c) Impairment of financial asset

d

-—

The measurement of impzirment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimaticn of tha amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of alowances.

The Company's expected credit loss (ECL') calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying

assumptions regaraing the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are

considered accounting judg=ments and estimates include:

() The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been 2 significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial
assets should be measurac on a life time expectad cradit loss ('LTECL') basis.

(i) Development of ECL made!s, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

(lli) Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs as gross domestic products, and
the effect on probability of cefault ('PD'), exposure at default (EAD’) ard loss given default ('LGD').

(iv) Selection of forward-locking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings. to derive the economic inputs
Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature. has a heightened slement of litigation risk
inherent to its operations.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such
outflows to be probzable, the Company records a provision 2gainst the case. Where the outflow is considered to be probable,
but a reliable estimate cannol be mace, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a
number of factors including lzcal advice, the stege of the matter and hisioncal evidence from similar incidents. Significant
judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRESENTATION OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets and financial lizbility are generally reparied gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net
when, in addition to having an uncanditional legally enforceabls right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent
on a future event, the parties zlso intend to settle on a nel basis in all of the following circumstances:

i} The normal course of business

i) The event of default

Financial instrument - initial recognition

Date of recognition

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially ~2cognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrurnent

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model far
managing the instrumant. Finarcial instruments are initally measured at thair fair value. Transaction costs are added to, or
subtracted from this amourn at initial recogniticn except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL
Transaction costs directly attrbutable ta the acquisitior of financial assete or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in Statament of profit and loss.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of is financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's
i) Amortised cost

ii) FVOCI

i) FVTPL
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Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
Business model assessment

The Company determines s bsiness model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve
its business objective.

The Company’s business mocel is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at & higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on obszrvable factors such as:

a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reported to the Company's key management personnel.

b) The risks that a'fect the peromance of the businass model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in
particular, the way those ris<s are managed.

¢) The expected frequency, vzlue and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company's assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonzbly expected scenzrios without taking ‘worst case' or 'stress case’
scenarios into account. If cash fows after initial recogniton are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original
expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorparates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Accordingly, financial assets arz maasured as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried a. amortised cost ('AC')

A financial asset is measurad at amortised cost if it is held within a businzss modal whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flaws and the contractual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i Financial assets measured at FVOC]
)

A financial asset is measurad at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual tarms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows thal are s:lely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i Financial assets measured at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
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b

(i}

Financial liabilities

- Subsequent measuremer:
Financial liabilites are camec at amortized cost using the effective interest mathod.

Reclassification of financial ssets and liabilities

The Company does not raclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never

reclassified. The Comoany did rot reclassify any of its fnancial assets or liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company deracognises @ financial asset whan the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that,

substantially, it becomes a naw term, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial esset (cr. where apalcable, a pari of & financ al asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of th= risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither ‘ransfers ner retans substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial assat.

On derecognition of & financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised
in the statement of profit and lose.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabllity is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability is replacad by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, suct an exchange or modificaton Is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The d flerence betwean the carrying value of the ariginal financial liability and the consideration
paid is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(1) Recognition of other expense
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arz the interest and othsr costs that tha Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs that are directly attributatle to the acquisition cr corstruction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such
assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a subistantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are chargad to the statement of =rofit and loss for the periad for which they are incurred,
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposts with barks. Cash equivalents are shori-term balances (with an original
maturity of three montss or lecs fram the date of acquisition), nighly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, plant and equipmerit

Property, plant and equipment 'FPE') are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
of PPE comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any cirectly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its
intended use and other incidental expenses. Subseguent expenditure on PPE after its purchase is capitalized only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the anterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line methoa fo write down the cost of property and eguipment to their residual
values over their estmated us=ful lives as specified under schedule Il of the Act. Land Is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

1) Computer Equipments - 3 yaars
ii) Office equipment - 5 years
iii) Furniture and fixtures - 10 years

Depreciation is provided on a pre-rata basis from the date on which such assel is ready for its intended use.
The residual values, ussful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plart and equipment are reviewed at each financial
PPE is derecognised cn dispozal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on

Intangible assets

The Company's intangible assefs include the value of software. An ntangible assel is recognised only when its cost can be
measured reliably and it is pioszble fhat the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the
Company.

Intangible assets acquired separataly are measured on initial recognition at cast. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carned at cost less any accumulated amortisation ang any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated to wrte off the cost of intancible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives (three yaars) usiry the straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of
profit and loss.

Impairment of nor financial assets - property, plant and equipments and intangible assets

The carying values cf assets / cash generating units =t the each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any
indication of impairment exists the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and if the carrying amount of these assets
exceeds their recoverable amount impairment loss Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as an expense, for such
excess amount. The rzcoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is arrived at by
discounting the futura cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an
impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longar exists or may have decreased, such reversal of
impairment loss is recognisad i1 the statement of profit ard loss.

~

7

=%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Ind AS 116 - Leases sets out the principles for the recegnition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account fo- all leases under a single an-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases
under Ind AS 17. The company has opted for two recognition exemptions for lessees .

—leases of low-value' assets (2.9, personal computars)
—and short-term leases (i.e., Izases with a lease term of 12 menths or less).

At the commencement date of 3 lease, z lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e. the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease tarm (i.e. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be
required to separaiely recognise the intarest expense o~ the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset (cost model).

The Company has Lezse agreements for taking office premises along with furniture and fixtures as applicable and premises on
remtal basis range of 36 manths to 30 menths wherein the Company is a lesses.

Retirement and other employae benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution 1z provident fund and employse state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution
plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered

Retirement and other employze benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans

The Company pays gratuity 1o the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation / retirement. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972,

The liability in respect of gratuty and other post-emaloyment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and
spread over the period during which the benefit is exoected to be derived from emplovees’ services.

As per Ind AS 19, the service cost and the net interest cost are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement of
the net defined berefit liability. wnich comprise actuzrial gains znd losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI.

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payabls wholly within twelve mosths of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as sziares, wages ete. anc the expected cost of ex-gralia are recognised in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. A liability is recogrised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are reccgnised when the Company has a presznt obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an cutfisw of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company
determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to
the liability. The expense relafing to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liability

A possible obligation that ariszs from past events and the existence of whick will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or mare uncartain future events not whally within the contrel of the Company or, present obligation that arises
from past events wnere it is no' probable that an ocutflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or the amount cf the obligation cannot be measured with sufficiant reliability are disclosed as contingent liability and
not provided for.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is a possble asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
Occurrence or non-occurrence of cne or more uncertain future avents not wholly within the control of the Campany. Contingent
assets are neither recognised ro: disclosed in the financial statements.

Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilitizs for the current and pnor years are measurec at the amount expected to be recovered from, or
paid fo, the taxation authorities. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the period as determined in
accordance with the appliczble tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating lo tems recognised cutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in ecuty). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undarlying transaction either in OCI or
equity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the standalone
financial statements and the corrasponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,

Deferred tax liabilities and assats are measured at the tzx rates that are expecled to apply in the penod in which the liability is
settled or the asse: realised, bated on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assels are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carryforward of unused tax losses and accumulated depreciation to the extent that it is
probable that future taxabla praft will be available against which the unused tax losses and accumulated depreciation can be
utilised,

Deferred tax relaling to items recognised outside prefit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Defarred tay lems are recegnisad in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or equity.

Deferred tax assets and ligbilizes are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and
the Company has z legally enforceable right for such set off,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (Continued)
Taxes (Continued)

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expanses

Expenses and assats are recagnised net of the goods enad services tax paid, except when the tax incurred on a purchase of
assets or availing of services is nct recoverable frorm the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicabla,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (Continued)
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share ('EPS) is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dviding the profit after 1ax (i.=. prefit attributable o ordinary equity holders) as adjusted for after-tax
amount of dividends and intersst racognised in the period in respect of the dilutive potential ordinary shares and is adjusted for
any other changes in income or expense that would result from the conversian of the dilutive potential ordinary shares, by the
weighted average nuriber of acuity shares considersd for deriving basic earnings per share as increased by the weighted
average number of additional creinary sharss that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed 1o be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from continuing ordinary operetiors. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the
period. unless they hzve been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share
splits. right issue and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Dividends on ordinary shares

The Company recognises a lability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorisad and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the Act. final dividend is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders and nterim dividend is authorised when the it is approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. A co rresponding amount is recagnised directly in edquity.

Non-cash distributions are measurad at the fair valus of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement recognised
directly in eqguity.

Upon distribution of nen-cash assets, any difference betwsen the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the
assets distributed is recognised i1 ‘he statement of profit and loss.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method as prescribed under Ind AS 7, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information,
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Particulars Year Ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2021 March 2020
25 |Earnings per share (EPS)
a)|The basic earnings per share has been calculated based on the following:
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders 39.35 20.53
Weighted average number of equity shares 21,070 20,000
b)|The reconciliation between the basic and the diluted earnings per share is as follows:
Basic earnings per share (%) X 186.77 102.66
Effect of dilution = -
Diluted earnings per share (%) 186.77 102.66
c)|Weighted average number of equity shares is computed for the purpose of calculating
diluted earning per share, after giving the dilutive impact of the outstanding stock options for
Weighted average number of shares for computation of Basic EPS 21,070 20,000
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock options
Dilutive effect of Contingent Consideration -
Anti Dilutive potential outstanding stock options - -
Anti Dilutive potential Contingent Consideration B -
Weighted average number of shares for computation of Diluted EPS 21,070 20,000

oo b~
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26 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
(A) Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2021 (As at 31st March 2020: Nil) (As at 01st April 2019 : Nil).

(B) Commitments

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2020

1) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
Property, plant and equipment - =
Intangible assets = -

As at
01 April 2018

27 Leases:

Disclosures as required under IND AS 116 - Leases
a) On adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company has recognized lease liabilities for all leases which were previ

operating leases under earlier GAAP. Ind AS 116 does not provide classification of leases into operating and finance lease for the
lessee accounting. The lease liability is measured at present value of the lease payments discounted at incremental borrowing rate as

on 1 April 2018. The lessee's incremental rate applied to these lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 is 11%.
Lease liabilities is disclosed under the "Other financial liabilities"

ously classified as

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 31 March 2020
2021
Interest expense on lease liability 4.24 3.08
Total 4.24 3.08

b) The Company has recognised Right of use (ROU) assets corresponding to the lease liabilities as per the requ
116. The ROU assets are amortized at SLM basis over the lease term.Reconciliation of Carrying amount of Righ
lessee as per IND AS 116 :

irements of Ind AS
t of use asset for a

Particulars

As at 01 April 2018

(+) Recognition of Right of use asset during the year
(-) Amortisation of Right of use asset

As at 31 March 2020

(+) Recognition of Right of use asset during the year
(-) Amortisation of Right of use asset

As at 31 March 2021

Amount in #
Crores

54.16
8.08

46.08

21.76
18.60

48.24

e) Cash outflow on lease. (Refer Cash flow statement)
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28

29

30

Corporate social responsibility (CSR') expenses:

Provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Segment reporting:

Operating segment are components of the Company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision
Maker ('CODM') to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete
financial information is available

The Company is engaged primarily on the business of "Business Carrespondance Services" only, taking into account the risks and
returns, the organization structure and the internal reporiing systems. All the operations of the Company are in India. All non-current
assets of the Company are located in India. Accordingly, there are nc separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 — “Operating
segments”.

Related party disclosures:

(a) Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.
List of related parties and relatonships:

Sr. No. Nature of relationshio

1 Holding Company
Niyogin Fintech Limited

2 Key manasgement personnel
DebiPrasad Sarangi
Amit Tyaoi
Sanjib Parida
Umakanta Sahoo
Debashish Mohapatra

Transactions with related parties are as follows: (Amountin ¥ lakhs)

Year ended 31 March 2021

Holding Key Total
Company management
personnel
Revenue Recognized (Share of Commission Income) 0.83 0.83
Director / KMP Remuneration -
Mr. DebiPrasad Sarargi 9.17 9.17
Mr. Amit Tyaqi 817 917
Mr. Sanjit Parida 817 9.17
Mr. Umakanta Szhao 9.17 9.17
Mr. Debashish Mohzpatra 8.17 9.7

Year ended 31 March 2020

Key Total
management
personnel
Director Remuneration
Mr. Debiorasad Sarana 7.59 7.59
Mr. Debashis Mohaoatra 7.59 7.59
Mr. Amit Tvaai 4.01 4.01
Mr. Sambaet Samart Sinhar 1.82 1.82
Balances outstandina from related parties are as follows:
As at 31 March 2021
Holding Key Total
Company management
personnel
Revenue Recongized 0.83 0.83
Director Remuneration (Payzble as at 31st March 2021)
Mr. DebiPrasad Sarangi 0.786 0.76
Mr. Amit Tyagi 0.76 0.76
Mr. Sanjit Parida 0.76 0.76
Mr. Umakanta Sehoo 0.76 0.78
Mr. Debashish Mohzpatra ~ 0.76 0.76
Loan From Directers ﬂ
Mr. DebiPrasad Sarangi AL 7.00 7.00
L s
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30 Related party dicclosures: {(Continued)

(a) Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.(Continued)

Balances outstanding from related parties are as follows: (Continued) (Amount in Z lakhs)
As at 31 March 2020
Key Total
management
personnel
Loan From Directers
Mr. DebiPrasad Sarargi 7.00 7.00
Mr. Debashis Mohapatra 2.85 2.85
As at 1 April 2019
Key Total
management
personnel
Loan From Directors
Mr. DebiPrasad Sarargi 7.00 7.00
Mr. Debashis Mohapatra 2.85 2.85

All transactions with these re/ated parties are priced on an arm’s length basis. None of the balances is secured.

30 Related party disclosures: (Continued)

Regulations, 2015),

(b) Disclosures as per Regulztion 53(f) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements

31 March during the 31 March during the
2021 year ended 31 2020 year ended 31
1 Mr. Debiprasad Sarangi 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
2 Mr. Debashis Mohapatra - - 2.85 2,85

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to coempenies in which directors are interested as under: (Amountin Z lakhs)
Sr. No. Name Maximum Maximum
balance out- balance out-
As at standing As at standing

As at
1 April 2019
7.00
2,85

Financial Year 2020-21 (2019-20 ‘Nil)

31 Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers during the year regarding their status
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act), the total outstanding dues of Micro and Small
enterprises, which arz outstarding for more than the stipulated period and other disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are given balow: There are no transactions with Micro and Small and Medium Enterprises during

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2020

|Principal amount payable to supoliers as at year-enc - -
Interest due thereon as at year end - -
Interest amount for delayed payments to suppliers pursuant to provisions of - -
MSMED Act actuallv paid durina the vear. irresoective of the vear to which the

Amount of delayed payment actuzally made to suppliers during the year - -
The amount of interest due znd payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
{which have been paid but beyond the appointad day during the year) but without

adding the interest spacified uncer MSMED Act 2006

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding -
years, until such date when tae interest dues as above are actually paid to the

small enterprises far the purc ase of disallowance as a deductible expenditure

As at
1 April 2019

T S




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standzlone financial staternents (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
32 Employee benefit plan

Disclosure in respect of employee banefite under Ind AS 10 - Employee Benefit are as under

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined cantribution
plans. The Company's contriaution to provident fund aggregating ¥ 2.88 lakhs (31 March 2020 ¥ 266 lakhs) has been
recognised in tha statement of profit and loss undar the head employee benefits expense.

(b) Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity
Financial assets not measured at fair value

The Company operates a cefined benefit plan (tha ‘gratuity olan’) covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan is governed
by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the zct, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific|
benefit. The level of benefis provided depends on the membar's length of service and salary at retirement age/ resignation
date.

The defined benefit plans exoose the Company to ricks such as actuarial risk, liquidity risk, market risk. legislative risk.
These are discussed as follows

Actuarial risk: It is the risk ‘hat benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse salary growth expzrience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an
increase in oblication at a rzte that is higher than axpected.

Variability in mortality rates If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratuity
benefits will be paid earlier tran expected. Sirce there & no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of
cash flow will lead 1o an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount|
rate.

Variability in withdrawal ratzs: If actual withdrawal rates zre higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then the|
gratuity benefits will be paiz eadier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at
the resignation date.,

Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or thase higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of|
benefits. If some of such erpioyees resign / retire from the Company, there can be strain on the cash flows.

Market risk: Market risk ic a collective term for risks that are related o the changes and fluctuations of the fmancia|1
markets. One actugrial assumption that has a ma:erial effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of
maney. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in defined bensfit obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This
assumption depancs on the yelds on the government bonas and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in
the yields as at the valustion date.

Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in
the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring the companies to
pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the|
same will have to be recognizac immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 is as under:
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit
Present value of definad benefit obligations at the beginning of the year - -
Current service zost 4.00 -
Past service cost - =
Interest cost - -
Acquisition adjustment e -
|Benefit paid - -
Change in demogarzephic assumptions - -
Change in finansial assumprions . -
Experience varianca (i.e Aztual experience vs assumptions) - -
Present value of dafined benefit obligations at the end of the year 4.00 -
|ii. Reconciliation ¢f opening and closing balances of the fair value of - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - =
iii. Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benzfit obligations at the end of the year 4.00 -
Fair value of plan assets at tha end of the year - -
Unrecognised past service cost - -
hoh&
Net asset / (liability) recogiized in the balance sheet as at the end of the 4.00 - o RY & 5
o)
& e
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Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the stanclzlone financial staternents {Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
32 Employee benefit plan

(b) Defined benefit plan: (Continued)
Gratuity (Continued)
Financial assets not measured at fair value (Continued)

Forthe year  For the year
meedasd 54 arclad 31
iv. Expense recognised du ring the Year
Current service zost 4.00 -
Interest cost - -
Past service cost » i
Expenses racognised in the s:atement of profit and loss 4.00 -
v. Other comprzhensive income
Components of actuarial gainlosses on obligations - -
Due to change in financial assumptions - -
Due to change in demograpniz assumption - -
Due to experience adjustments - -
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income - -
Components of dafined benaft costs recognised in other comprehensive - -
—
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
vi. Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.50%
Annual increase in salary cost 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rates par annu=
21t0 30 15.00% 15.00%
31t0 34 10.00% 10.00%
351044 5.00% 5.00%
45 to 50 3.00% 3.00%
51 to 54 2.00% 2.00%
55 to 57 1.00% 1.00%

The discount rae is based an tha prevailing market yelds of Government of India's band as at the balance sheet date for

the estimated term of the okligations.

vii. Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumatons for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected
based on reasonably possible changes of the,
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting penod, while hoiding all other assumptions constant. The results of

salary increase . The zensitvity analysis below have been determined

sensitivity analysis is given bslow

Increase
Discount rate (- / + 0.5%) 7.50%
(% change comparead to base due to sensitivity -10.70%
Salary growth rate (- / + 0.5%) 7.50%
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 12.37%

For the year ended
4 Marsbh 2094

For the year ended
21 March 2020

Decrease Increase
6.50% B.00%
12.49% -5.74%
6.50% 7.50%
-10.80% 6.20%

Decrease

7.00%
6.20%
6.50%
-5.79%




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standzlone financial staternents (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
32 Employee benefit plan (Continuaa)

s (b) Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

viii. Effect of plan on the Company's future cash flows

a) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
The average outstanding ter cf the obligations (years) as at valuation date is 11.63 years,

Cash flows (2) Distribution (%)
h flow: the next (valued on undiscounts

15t Following Year 0.08 0.11%
2nd Following year 0.38 0.55%
3rd Following Year 1.06 1.54%
4th Following Year 1,38 1.96%
5th Following Year 1.37 2.00%
6th Following Year 7.18 10.45%
7th Following Year 1.16 1.70%
8th Following Year 1.13 1.65%
Bth Following Year 1.11 1.62%
Sum of years 1C and above 53.86 78.42%




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2027

(Amountin ¥ lakhs)

33 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2021 Mandatorily

at FVTPL
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

1Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advarces to Parties

Investment securities

Measured at fair value

Measured at cost

Measured at amortised cos!

Other Receivables (Trade Recaivables & Advance Receverable in Gash or Kind)
Other financial assets

At cost

Amortised
cost

2,169.42

158.70

752.28

Total carrying
amount

2.169.42

159.70

752.28

Total Financial assets -

3,081.40

3,081.40

Trade Payables (Liability towards channel Partners)
Other financial liabil ties

1,123.55

1,123.55

Total Financial liabilities -

1,123.55

1,123.55

As at 31 March 2020

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advarces to customers

Investment securities

Measured at fair value

Measured at Cost

|Measured at amortisad cos!

Other Receivables (Trade Reczivables & Advance Recaoverable in Cash or Kind)
Other financial assets

567.54

120.23

658.95

567.54

120.23

658.95

Total Financial assets =

1.346.73

1.346.73

Trade payables (Liability towards channel Partners)
Other financial liabil tias

570.72

570.72

Total Financial liabilities -

570.72

570.72

As at 1 April 2019

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

|Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans and advarces to custcmers

Investment securities

Measured at fair value

Measured at Cost

Measured at amortised cos!

Other Receivables (Trade Recsivables & Advance Recoverable in Gash or Kind)
Other financial assets

1.62

404.05

Total Financial assets .

405.67

Trade payables
Other financial liabil ties

Total Financial liabilities =

dlel; NQ\/’




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2027

(Amountin Z lakhs)
34  Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instrument by Category

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 April 2019
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised

Financial Asset

Investments

- Bonds and Debsntures

- Mutual Funds

Other Receivables

Loans 158.70 120.23 1.62

Cash And Cash Equivalents 2,169.42 567 54 -
Bank balance other than cash -
and rach amiivalante

Other Receivables (Trade 752.28 658.95 404.05

Daraimahlae  Adiuancra

Other Financial Assats

Total Financial Assets - 3,081.40 - 1,346.73 - 405.67 |
Financial Liability

Trade Payables 1,123.55 570.72 -
Other Financial Liakilities

Total Financial Liabilities - 1,123.55 = 570.72 — -

Fair value Hierarchy

This section explairs the jucgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instrument that are (a)
recognized and measurec 2t fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has
classified its finencial instrumants into three levels prescribed uncer the accounting standard. An explanation of each level
follows underneath table

As at 31 March 2021

Carrying Fair value measurements using j
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets*
Investments
- Bonds and Debantures - -
- Mutual Funds - &
Loans and advances 159.70 159.70 158.70
Other Receivables -
Cash And Cash Equivalents 2.169.42
Bank balance other than cash -
and cash equivalents
Security Deposits -
Other Financial assets 752.28
Total Financial Asset 3,081.40 - 159.70 - 159.70
Financial Liabilities*
Trade Payables 1,123.55
Lease Liability -
Contingent Consideration -
Total Financial Liabilities 123.5 - e o - .




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 Marzh 202+

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

34  Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020

Carrying Fair value measurements using

amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets*
Investments
- Bonds and Debantures - a
- Mutual Funds . u
Loans and advances 120.23 120.23 120.23
Other Receivables -
Cash And Cash Eqguivalen:s 567.54
1Bank balance other than cash -
and cash equivalents
Other Financial assets 658.95
Security Deposits a - " _ N
Total Financial Asset 1,346.73 - 120.23 - 120.23
Financial Liabilities*
Trade Payables 570.72
Lease Liability - E 5 3 .
Total Financial Liabilities 570.72 - - - -
As at 1 April 2019

Carrying Fair value measurements using

amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets*

Investments

- Bonds and Debentures . -
- Mutual Funds - :

Loans and advarces 1.62 -

Other Receivables -
Cash And Cash Equivalents -
Bank balance other than cash

and cash equivalents

Other Financial zssets 404.05
Security Deposits - .
Total Financial Asset 405 .67 - - - =

Financial Liabilities*

Trade Payables -

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities - - - - -

*The Company hzs not disclosed the fair values for cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, bank deposits,
receivables and other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities as these are short term in nature
and their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

.\
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amountin ¥ lakhs)

34

Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the
Company has the ability to access for the identical assets or liabilties. A financial instrument is classified as a Level 1
measurement if it is listed on an exchange. None of the Financial Instruments of the company is Classifible as Level 1 Assets or
Liability.

Level 2 : The fair vzlue of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets for substantially the full term of the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. Fair
value of loans and advances of the Company is measured using the last month's lending rate. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are chservable the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3.

Financial instruments valued at carrying value

The respective carrying veluss of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximated their fair value. These financial
instruments include cash in hand, balances with Banks. financial institutions and money at call and short notice, accrued interest
receivable, acceptances, degosits payable on demand, accrued interest payable, and certain other assets and liabilities that are
considered financial instruments. Carrying values were assumed to be approximate fair values for these financial instruments as
they are short-term in nature and their recorded amounts approximate fair values or are receivable or payable on demand,

Fair value of financial instruments carried gt amortised cost
Loans and advarces

The fair values cf loans that do not reprice or mature frequently are estimated using discounted cash flow models. Loans and
advances are fair vzlued bzsis the future expected cash flows discounted at the lending rate.
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 Marzh 202+

(Amountin ¥ l|akhs)
35 Revenue from contracts with customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to profit and loss

For the year For the year,|
ended 31 ended 31
March 2021 March 2020
Type of income

Commission Income 3,738.42 1,886.25
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,738.42 1,886.25
Geographical markets

India 3,738.42 1.886.25
Outside India = b
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,738.42 1,886.25

Timing of revenue rzcognition

Services transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over tirre 3,738.42 1,886.25
Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,?38.42_=_ 1.886.25

36 There have been no everts afer the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

37 The disclosures regarding holdings as well as cealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30
December 2016 have not been made in these financial statements sirice they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31
March 2021.
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
38  Explanation to transition to Ind AS

As stated in Note 2, these arz the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31 March
2020, the Company had orecared its financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified
under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act ('Previous GAAP').

The accounting policizs set cut in Note 3 have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
including the comparative information for the year endz=d 31 March 2020 and the apening Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition
i.e. 1 April 2019

In preparing the Ind AS balance shest as at 1 Aaril 2019 znd in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31 March
2020, the Company has adjustad amounts reportzd previously in the financial statements prepared In accordance with Previous GAAP.
This note explains the princpezl adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with
Previous GAAP, anc now the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial pesition, financiall
performance and cash flows

Optional exemptions availed ard mandatory exceptions
In preparing these financial s:atzrents. the Company has applied the belew mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions.

A. Optional exemptions availed

1. Property plant and equipment and intangible assets

As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:
() measure an itern of property. plant and equipmant at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at]
that date

(1) use a Previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost at the
date of the revaluation, pravioed Ihe revaluation was, at the date of the rev aluation, broadly comparable to;

- fair value,
- or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted to refiect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index,

The elections under (i) above are also available for iniangible assets that meets the recognition criteria in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets.
(including reliable measuremezn: of original cost); 2nd critenz in Ind AS 38 for revaluation (including the existence of an active market).

(i) use carrying values of proceny, plant and equipment infangible assels and investment properties as on the date of transition to Ind
AS (which are measured in 3ccordance with Previous GAAP) if there has been no change in its functional currency on the date off
transition.

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under Previous GAAP for all the items of
property, plant anc equipmern. The same election has nesn made in respect of intangible assets also.

B.  Mandatory exceptions

8 Accounting estimates

As per Ind AS 101. an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS at the end of the comparative period
presented in the entity's first ind AS financial statements, es the case may be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same
date in accordance with tha Previous GAAP unless there is objective svidence that those astimates were in error. However, the estimates
should be adjusted to raflect zny differences in accounting policies.

As per Ind AS 101, where apglication of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estmates that were not required under Previous GAAP,
those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or|
at the end of the comparative parod (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).

The Company's estimates uncer Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of the
financial statemen:s that were ro: required under the Previous GAAP are |isted below:

- Impairment of financial asse's based on the expected credit loss model,

- Determination of the discourted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.
- Expected life of pertfolio.

- Classification of equity and lizbility.

2, Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

As per Ind AS 101, an entity should apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, prospectively fo
transactions occurning on o- aftzr the date of transition o Ind AS. However. an entity may apply the derecognition requireme
retrospectively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial lisKde
derecognised as a result of pest transactions was abtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions. g

The Company has elected to zpply thg de-recognition criteria for financial assets/liabilities prospectively, Hence. it has not recogniset
financial asset anyial liabilibys previpNly de-rezognised, =

DEEE
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
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(Amountin # lakhs)

38  Explanation to transition ¢ Ind AS {Continued)
B. Mandatory exceptions (Continued)

3. Classification and measurement of financizl assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on
the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on
facts and circumstances exsti ng at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on
the date of transitior.

4, Impairment of financial azsets

The Company being NBFC company is required to assess the impairment of financial assets based upon the new model i.e.
ECL instead of rule nased guidance (RBI Prudential Norms) as prevailed under Previous GAAP.

Accordingly, the Company has applied the impairment requirement of Ind-AS 109 on all financial assets recognised as per Ind-
AS 109:

1. ECL are recognised for firancial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, and certain loan
commitments.

2. Financial assets where no significant increase in credit risk has been observed are considered to be in 'stage 1' and for
which a 12 month ECL is recognised. Finarcial assels that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are
considered to be in 'stage Z' and those which arz in dafault or for which there is an objective evidence of impairment are
considered to be in ‘stage 3'. Lifetime ECL is racognised for stage 2 and stage 3 financial assets.

3. At initial recognition, allcwance (or provisicn in the case of loan commitments) is required for ECL towards default events
that are possible in the next 12 months. In the event of & significant increase in credit risk, allowance (or provision) is required
for ECL towards zll pessiblze default events over the expected life of the financial instrument (lifetime ECL"). Financial assets
(and the related impairmert lass allowances) are written off in full. when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Treatment of the different stages of financial assets and the methodo logy of determination of ECL

(a) Credit impaired (stage 3)

The Company recognises a financial asset tc be credit impaired and in stage 3 by considering relevant objective evidence,
primarily whether:

Contractual payments of eithar principal or interest are past due for more than 90 days;

The loan is otherwise considerad to be in default,

(b)_Significant increase in ¢ edit risk (stage 2)

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is performed at each reporting pen'odL
by considering the change in the risk of default of the loan exposure. However, unless identified at an earlier stage, 30 days
past due is considered as an irdication of financial assels to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk.

The measurement =f nisk of defaults under stage 2 is computed on homogenous portfolios, generally by nature of loans,

tenors, underlying collateral, geographies anc borrower profiles. The default risk is assessed usingPD (probability of default)
derived from past behaviourzl trends of defaul: across the identified homogenousporticlios. These past trends factor in the past

Customer benhavioural trends and macroeconomic conditions. The assessed PDs are then aligned considering future economic
conditions that are determired to have a bearing on ECL

(c) Measurement of ECL

The assessment of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted. It incorporates all information that

is relevant including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable forecasts of future events and economic
conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into account the time value of money. Forward looking
economic scenarios deterrired with reference to externzal forecasts of economic parameters that have demonstrated a linkage
to the performance of our partfalios over a perod of time have bzen applied to determine impact of macro economic factors.

The Company has calculatad ECL using three main components: a probability of default (PD), a loss given default (LGD) andL
the exposure at cefault (EAD).

a. Determination of @D is covered above for each stages of ECL.

b. EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the
Balance Sheet date to the cate of default.

c. LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default

A more detailed description <f the methodology used for ECL is covered in the ‘credit risk' section of note no. 43

fla o
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39  First-time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS
These are the company's first &tandalone financial staterents prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting pol.cies set ou in note 1 have been apglied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 the comparative informztior presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and in the
preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2019 (the Compazny’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind
AS balance sheet, the Comparny has adjuslea the emounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance
with the accounting stendards notified under Companies (Accaunting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant
provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP o IGAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to
Ind AS has affected the Comzany's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables
and notes.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to reconcile equity, total compreheasive income and cash fiows for prior periods. The
following tadles represent the raconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

i) Reconciliation of Total equity between previous GAAP and Ind AS:
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

As At 31st  As At 1st April|

March 2020 2019
Total equity as per pravious GAAP 77.42 60.18
Adjustments:
Reversal of Rent provisions created under Indian GAAP 9.94 7.73
Recognition of Amertization of Right of Use (7.91) (6.84)
Recognition of Lease Interest Sxgense (3.08) (3.61)
Recognition of Lease Modificaion Gain 3.77 -
Recognition of Rent Expenses an Secutiry Deposits (0.17) (0.12)
Recognition of Interest on Security Deposits 0.15 0.10
Reversal of Processiorg Fees ‘ecognized as per Indian GAAP 2.50 0.44
Recognition of Interest Expensa ar Loar (1.49) (1.63)
Recognition of Deferred Incoma 0.74 1.45
Reversal of Retained Earnings due 1o first time adoption of Ind (2.29) -
Recognition of Excess Income Tax provision (1.18) -
Total adjustments 1.01 (2.29)
Total equity as per Ind AS 78.43 57.90

) Reconciliation of profit as per Ind AS with profit reported under previous GAAP:
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Note For year ended
31 March 2020

Net profit after tax as per previous GAAP 17.24
Adjustments:

Reversal of Rent provisions created under Indian GAAP (i) 9.94
Recognition of Amcrtization of Right of Use (ii) (7.91)
Recognition of Lease Interest £xsense (iii) (3.08)
Recognition of Lease Maodificaiion Gain (iv) 30T
Recognition of Rent Expenses on Secutiry Deposits (V) (0.17)
Recognition of Interest on Security Deposits (vi) 0.15
Reversal of Processiong Fees ‘ezoanizad as per Indian GAAP (wil) 2.50
Recegnition of Interest Expensa on Loan {wiii) (1.49)
Recognition of Deferred Income (viii) 0.74
Recognition of Excess Income Tax provision (x) (1.16)
Total adjustments 3.30
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 20.53

Other Comprehensive Incoma:
Reclassification of acturial loss2¢ ta OCI (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 20.53
5\

5, W




Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

39  First-time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)
Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS (Continued)

i) Impact of Ind AS adoption on the standalone statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020

Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow from operating activities
Net cash flow from investing activities -
Net cash flow from financing activities -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents =

Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, 2018 -

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - - -

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2020 - = =

d) Notes to first-time adoption:

i} Accounting for effective interest rates

Under previous GAAP, all the transaction costsfincomes integral to origination of loans and advances were recognised upfront
on an accrual basis. Under Ind AS 109, these-transaction costsfincomes related to origination of loans and advances are
amortised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method over the contractual life of the loans and advances.

There was has no adjustment against equity as on 01 April 2019, as the fees and income diluted the net impact on equity.
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been Increased by  20.35 lakhs due to this change.

Security deposits initially recognised at amortised cost

Under previous GAAP, the Company accounted for receivable security deposits paid to parties at carrying cost. Under Ind AS,
these deposits have been accounted at amortised cost determined using the appropriate market rate.

iii) Lease accounting

Under previous GAAP, the Company accounted for lease by recognising lease rentals as an expense on a straight-line basis
aver the lease period. Under IND AS 116, at the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right of use asset . Interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset is recognised separately.

As a result of this change, the profit for year ended 31 March 2020 decreased by ¥ 1.24 lakhs (net).

As per our report of even date.

For Manoj Choudhury & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 032723%4E

srveu Technology Private Limited
CIN : UT29000R2016PTC025851

ISERVEU TEQHNOLDGY P
ISERVEU TECHNOL GYPVT LTD.

Debipn
CA< Niranjan Mohapat Mr! Debiprasad Saranq_ Mr. Ami
Director RECTOR Director
Membership No. : 099882 DIN : 07601542 DIN : 08317195
UDIN : 21099882AAAAEC4429
Bhubaneswar, 21st May, 2021 Mr. Tashwinder Harjap Singh Mr. Rumit Dugar
Director Director

DIN : 06572282 DIN : 06869856 |




Iserveu Technology Private Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 202+
(Amountin ¥ lakhs)
Reconciliation of equity
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)
As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 April 2019
Particulars As per Adjustments  As perInd As per Adjustments  As per Ind
IGAAP AS IGAAP AS
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 567.54 - 567.54 229.22 - 229.22
Bank balance other than cash
and rash ennivalents ahave
Receivables
Other receivables 25,56 - 2556 17.76 - 17.76
Loans 134,73 - 134.73 1.82 - 1.62
Investments
Other financial assets 635.95 - 635.95 386.28 - 386.28
Total financial assets 1,363.79 - 1,363.79 634.89 - 634.89
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets (Net) 114.29 (1.16) 113.13 15.88 - 15.88
Deferred tax assets (Net)
Right of use assat - 46.08 46.08 - 28.01 28.01
Property, plant and equiprent 26.30 - 26.30 10.36 - 10.36
Intangible assets under
Intangible assets 8.36 - 8.86 8.76 - 8.76
Other non-financial zssets 6.38 (0.85) 5.53 1.65 (0.52) 1.13
Total non-financial assets 155.32 44.07 199.89 36.65 27.49 64.15
TOTAL ASSETS 1,519.561 44,07 1,563.68 671.54 27.49 699.04
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables* 13.40 - 13.40 0.60 - 0.60
Other financial liabilities 884 .04 48.04 932.08 489.97 3.7 521.14
Total financial liabilites 897 44 48.04 94547 480.57 31.17 521.74
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilitics 545,57 (4.97) 540.59 159.08 (1.39) 157.70
Total non-financial liabilites 545.57 (4.97) 540.59 159.08 (1.39) 1567.70
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2.00 = 2.00 2.00 2.00
Other equity 75.42 1.01 76.43 58.19 (2.29) 55.90
Total equity 77.42 1.01 78.43 60.19 (2.29) 57.90
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 1,520.43 44 .07 1,564.50 709.84 27.49 737.34
IEQUITY _
* Trade Payables as on 01.04,2019 amounting to Rs. 26.39 lakhs are regrouped to bring matching concept between different
periods

!~
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Iserveu Technclogy Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalon

for the year ended 31 March 202-

(Amountin ¥ lakhs)

e financial statements (Continued)

(Amountin ¥ lakhs)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars As per Indian Adjustment As perind AS

GAAP
|Revenue from operations
Commissien Income 3,738.42 - 3.738.42
Device & One Time Setup Fees 468.38 - 468.38
Total revenue from operations 4.2086.30 - 4,206.80
Interest Income - 0.30 0.30
Other Income (0.93) 0.39 1.32
Total income 4,205.87 0.69 4,208.42
Expenses
Cost of Services 3.260.44 - 3,260.44
Change in Inventories of Stack In Trade (91.28) - (91.26)
Employee benefi: expense 455.20 - 455.20
Finance cost 110.60 6.63 117.23
Depreciation expenss 10.24 18.60 28.84
Other expenses 405.02 (20.23) 384.80
Total expenses 4,150.23 5.01 4.155.24
|Profit before tax 55.64 (4.32) 53.18
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 38.57 (0.74) 37.83
(2) Deferred tax (24.00) - (24.00)
Total tax expense 14.57 (0.74) 13.83
Profit for the period 41.08 (3.58) 39.35
Other comprehensive income
() ltems that will not be reclzssified to profit or loss
-Re-measurement of defined benefir plan
(if) Income tax reiating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period 41.08 (3.58) 39.35

“Ind AS 101 requires raconciliations of i

additional disclosure

# The previous GAAP figures have been reclassifie

note.

ts equity reported in accorcance with previous GAAP to its equity in accordance with
Ind AS and a reconciliation to its total comprehensive income in accordance with Ind AS for the latest period in the entity's most
recent annual financial statzments. The Company has chosen to provide reconciliation of amount reported in accordance with
previous GAAP to amount reported under Inc AS for each line item of balance sheet and statement of profit and loss as an

d to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this
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